
Questions and Answers 

 

 Q1. With regard to the legal terms and conditions, would the Embassy agree that, to the extent that 

referred terms and conditions are incompatible with Greek law and offeror’s terms and conditions 

applicable to the provision of telecom service in Greece, such terms and conditions can be modified in 

mutual agreement.  

A1.  This contract is not intended to purchase the company’s standard agreement; it is intended to 

purchase an agreement that conforms exactly to the solicitation requirements.  Therefore, no 

signature of the commercial agreement shall be accepted. 

 

Q2. Please clarify if the aforementioned quotation is submitted under the U.S. law of public procurement 

as well as if the contract will be standing under the jurisdiction of U.S. courts.  

A2.  Please refer to A1 above. 
 

Q3. Please clarify if all the end users are under diplomatic status or not, U.S. or non U.S. citizens.  

A3.  The cell phones will be used by Embassy personnel for official purposes. 

 

Q4. Please clarify who will be the owner of the telephone numbers that the contractor will issue.  

A4.  Paragraph 1, Performance Work Statement, states that “The Contractor shall provide complete 

mobile telephones services for the Embassy of Athens and its affiliated offices in Thessaloniki”.  Please 

refer also to the Invoicing section. 

 

Q5. Please indicate what might be the “Temporary Additional Services” (art.1, page 3 of the quotation).  

A5.  Temporary Additional services are clearly defined in the second paragraph of Article 1, Scope 

of Contract.  

 

Q6. Please clarify what is the true meaning of the provision “The Contractor shall have a working system 

of survivability of the network in case of emergency and serious disaster when all networks may be 

jammed or when parts of the network are destroyed” (art 1, page 20 of the quotation).  

A6.  The vendor should have thought about what they would do in the case of a crisis.  They should 

have some type of contingency planning document showing what actions they would take to restore 

and/or maintain some level of service both during and after a crisis or natural disaster.   

Q7. Please clarify the note under all table Options in Section 1/iii.Pricing “During this contract period, the 

Government shall place orders totaling a minimum of €20,000. This reflects the contract minimum for 

this period of performance. The amount of all orders shall not exceed €90,000. This reflects the contract 

maximum for the period of performance.” Since the contract will be a one-year contract with two one-

year options to renew, we would expect to see the amount increasing from the one-year contract to the 

two-year contract. Instead, the same amount is repeated. Maybe, the confusion here emerges from the fact 

that it is not clear to us how an order is defined, therefore, please clarify what an order will include.  

A7.  The clause states that “During this contract period, the Government shall place orders totaling a 

minimum of €20,000.00.  This reflects the contract minimum for this period of performance.  The 

amount of all orders shall not exceed €90,000.00.  This reflects the contract maximum for this period 

of performance.”  The statement covers each year of the contract. 

 

Q8. We would appreciate if you could specify the exact certifications & representations that are needed 

(number and document title), in order not to exclude any necessary documents by mistake. Namely, what 

kind of certification is needed in order to prove that the offeror/quoter (a) operates an established business 

with a permanent address and telephone listing and (b) has all licenses and permits required by local law. 

Is a relevant Declaration of Honour adequate?  



A8.  Offerors must complete all appropriate fill-in-the-blank sections, which are denoted by “[  ]”, 

only if they are applicable.  As for the licenses and permits, please consult your legal advisor 

regarding the submission of official documents when participating in solicitations. 

 

Q9. In the front page of the solicitation, it is required from the offeror/contractor to complete (between 

others) the blocks 23 “unit price” and 24 “amount”. Both are related to the block 20 “schedule of 

supplies/services”. Could you please clarify for what price/amount are we required to complete in these 

blocks (23, 24), since the description of the block 20 is very vague: “Mobile Telephone Services, as per 

attached statement of Work”. Do you mean the Total Estimated Amount for Standard Services? And if 

yes for which option (1 or 2)?  

A9.  You may state “See Section III, Pricing” in Block 24. 

 

Q10. Relating to Q1 & Q2 of our previous communication, can you clarify what kind of contract will be 

signed? Will the US Embassy accept to sign the template agreement with title General Terms and 

Conditions, in order to be Connected to the contractor’s Public Telecommunications Network that is 

provided to and signed by all subscribers of subject service provider in Greece? It must be noted that this 

document should be signed, also, in Greek.  

A10.  Please refer to A1 above. 
 

Q11. Relating to certain provisions that will either be considered as “contract clauses”, particularly 

Section 2 (pages 21-27) as well as other clauses deemed to be incorporated to the final agreement for the 

provision of services (pages 28 etc and 41-54), could you further elaborate on contractor’s obligations? In 

particular, how can the service provider monitor compliance with those clauses – provisions, particularly 

when we do not have the relevant documents in our possession nor do we employ US Lawyers, so as to 

be able to determine our obligations? Is there a way that the US Embassy could provide us aid relating to 

this issues?  

A11.  As stated in page 28 of the solicitation, “the full text of a clause may be accessed electronically 

at: http://www.acquisition.gov/far/ or http://farsite.hill.af.mil/vffara.htm” 

Q12.In relation to Q9 of our previous communication, could you please clarify what will happen, if the 

amount due for one year exceeds the amount of 90.000 Euros at a certain incident? For example, if by the 

11th month the total amount paid reaches the threshold of 90.000 Euros, what should the service provider 

do e.g. for the 12th month? In other words, which are the obligations of the service provider when the 

threshold is reached? Shall we terminate the provision of Services, until further notice? Shall we notify 

the US Embassy in advance and expect a written clearance – approval to continue providing services of 

value that exceeds the 90.000 Euros? Please advise accordingly.  

A12.  We do not anticipate exceeding the maximum amount stated in the solicitation.  If the 

maximum amount is reached before the 12-month period, we will modify the contract to adjust the 

amount. 

 

Q13. Relating to paragraph 1.9 in page 16, where it mentions that the US Embassy will not “commit to a 

contract for those lines”, we understand that you want those lines to be considered as being included in 

the Frame Agreement to be signed for all US Embassy telephone lines. Nevertheless, we would need at 

least a relevant order to be properly submitted in due course and signed by a competent official of the US 

Embassy, so as for the service provider to be able to release those “additional lines”. Is this acceptable for 

the US Embassy?  

A13. Subject contract will be the sole agreement signed by both the U.S. Government and the 

contractor. Additional lines will be requested directly by the COR by e-mail to the contractor’s 

Project Manager. 

http://www.acquisition.gov/far/
http://farsite.hill.af.mil/vffara.htm


 

 

Q14. Finally, we would like a clarification (more specific than our previous Q2) as to whether the 

agreement for the lines to be signed between the US Embassy and the service provider will be under 

Greek mandatory Law, e.g. Data Protection Legislation. In this respect, it must be pointed out that the 

contractor can only release information data (personal data) relating to the proper monitoring and 

verification of the telecommunications bills and charges. In addition, we provide other types of 

information data according to Greek Legislation; usually after a competent Greek District Attorney’s 

Order. In this context, if more data relating to personal data of the users of the lines are requested by the 

US Embassy, the proper legal procedure according to Greek Law should be adopted. Is this acceptable for 

the US Embassy?  

A14.  No personal data of the users may be released without the COR’s advance approval. 

 

Q15. The prices will be Vat 23% excluded. However, should we also calculate in our prices the 

Government taxes that all customers in Greece pay at the moment and is as follows:  

For Monthly invoices of up to 50€ : 12%  

For Monthly invoices from 50,01€ to 100€ : 15%  

For Monthly invoices from 100,01€ to 150€ : 18%  

For Monthly invoices over 150,01€ : 20%  

(They do not include VAT)  

A15.  Please refer to Section III, Pricing, at the bottom of the description of services/pricing for 

each year of the contract. 

 

Q16. The given Monthly Estimated Quantities (for example: Mobile to WIND network 2.667 min) refer 

to the monthly average call duration in minutes for the total quantity (450 numbers)? 

A16.  We had estimated about 32000 minutes per year for all cell phones, which would be an 

average of 2667.0 minutes per month for all cell phones. 

 

  


